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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL [IF KNDWN} PRYSICAL APPEARANCE
The old clerk's office is located on Route 15 in the community of Worsham. The
building is situated north of the site of the former courthouse square. The one-story,
Roman Revival-style building was erected in 1855 by Messrs. Guthrey and Thackston.

Executed in Flemish bond, the south elevation is dominated by a one-story portico.
The portico consists of the original Tuscan columns and pilasters that support the
original unstudied Tuscan entablature. A similarly executed entablature runs the perimeter
of the building. The portico’s flat roof shelters twin entries which consist of simply
framed six-paneled doors; the upper panels have been replaced by glass. The doors are
raised from the base of the portico by five wooden steps, the doorway step executed in
granite. Neither the portico floor nor the steps are original. The central composition is
flanked by 6/6 hung sash within three-part architraves set on granite sills. The left sash
is original; that on the right is a replacement.

The east elevation was constructed in two parts, The original 1855 section of
one bay is executed in Flemish bond. The fenestration is similar to that found on the
south elevation. The bay is covered by a gable roof, and the pedimented gable contains the
original Doric entablature with modillions in the tympanum. The entablature on the rest
of the building apparently had modillions, but they have been removed. The ell is executed
in common bond and was probably added when the building was converted into a school. Fene-
stration consists of 6/6 hung sash, in an asymmetrical arrangement. The brick ell is
covered by a low-pitched gahle roof, A flat water table runs the perimeter of the brick
'sections of the building.

The west elevation was also constructed in two parts. The original 1855 one-bay
section is executed in Flemish-bond brick. The treatment of the fenestration is similar
to that found on the south elevation, A weatherboarded 20th-century frame addition extends
to the northwest. The addition contains a four-part window with 2/2 hung sash and is
covered by a low-pitched gable roof.

The north elevation is composed of the gable ends of the later additions. A Doric
cornice serves as a visual connection for the two sections. The wood-frame addition contains
a new porch sheltering the two rear entries. A small gable-roof boiler shed projects from
the wall of the brick additiom.

The original plan of the clerk's office consisted of two rooms with a central chim-
ney. The school addition and wood-frame addition extended the plan to the north. A recent
1978 renovation has blocked off the later additions for use as an apartment. Present plans
call for the restoration of the two south rooms into a museum The original random—width
pine floors are still in place, as is the original window and door symmetrical architrave
trim. The original mantel survives in the east room. The original plaster walls were
exposed when 20th-century paneling was removed. The original ceiling with a simple two-part
flat, Greek Revival cornice survives, found when a suspended celling was removed. )

An Ttalianate-style shed still stands to the rear of the property.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The old county clerk's office, together with the restored debtor's jail, are reminders
of the period 1754-1872 when this community was Prince Edward Court House. Built in 1855 by
Guthrey and Thackston, the present structure was the third clerk's office. The edifice was
built north of the early courthouse square in the Roman Revival idiom, popularized in 19th-
century courthouse design by Thomas Jefferson and his followers. Clerk of the court at
the time--and indeed from 1825-1870--~was Branch Worsham after whom the community was later
named.

At the formation of Prince Edward in 1754, the court was established here at an
important crossroads situated in the geographic center of the county. The present clerk's
of fice was built as a stylistic complement to the neoclassical c¢court building erected in
1832, thus completing the antebellum courthouse complex. At the time of the construction
of the courthouse, the pervasive mode for public buildings had become the porticoed example
of the Yeoclassical Revival, popularized by Jeffersonian~design influence. Although the
fashion was waning by the time the clerk's office was built, the county commissioners elected
to continue the noble tradition. The clerk's office was built after the specifications of
the courthouse committea, consisting of Messrs. Dickenson, Anderson, Worsham, and Guthrey.
1t was completed in December 1855 at a cost of $1785. The building served the county until
1872 when the court was moved to Farmville.

Following the abandonment of the buildings, Dr. Joseph Eggleston purchased the court-
house, clerk's office, and jail and established the Prince Edward Academy utilizing the
buildings in 1874. By 1876 the catalogue of the academy showed an enrollment of 41 boys,
the clerk's office being used as a dormitory. The buildings were later operated as a
public school., The old clerk's office eventually was converted intc a private home. In 1977
it was purchased by the county for use as a county museum. The restored Debtor's Prisom,
listed on the Virginia and National Registers, stands across the road.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Situated on E side of US Route 15, about 350" SSE of intersection of said route and State
Route 665 on a lot of about 1 1/4 acres and measuring approximately 200'x 250', the 200’
fronting on Route 15.
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Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission April 1979
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As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Histaric Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law BS-665), i
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